
 

1 
 

Plan Commission 
  6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 
 

AGENDA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Heman Park Community Center 
975 Pennsylvania Ave., University City, MO 63130 

6:30 pm; Wednesday, October 23, 2019 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of Minutes – August 28, 2019 Plan Commission meeting 
 

3. Hearings - None 
 

4. Old Business  
 

a. None 
 

5. New Business 
 

a. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-06 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: GBG Transportation LLC 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to establish and  
operate a Vehicle Service Facility with Accessory Used Car Sales 
Address: 8550 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 

b. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-07 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: Green To Cure, Inc. 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to establish and  
operate a Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
Address: 6800 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 

c. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-08 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: Sprint 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to Upgrade Equipment to 
Existing MonoPole 
Address: 7547 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 



 

2 
 

 
d. Map Amendment & Preliminary Development Plan Approval - PC 19-09 

Applicant: ALP Acquisition LLC 
Request: Approval of a Zoning Map Amendment from General Commercial 
(PC) to Planning Development – Mixed Use PDM. Approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan. 
Address: 8400 Delmar Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

 
e. Text Amendment – PC 19-10 

Parking Exceptions Text Amendment pertaining to Section 400.2130 – 
Exceptions to Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading Space.  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

 
6. Other Business 

 
a. Comprehensive Plan – Submittals Received 
b. Planning Commission Retreat 
 

7. Reports 
 

a. Council Liaison Report 
 

8. Adjournment 
 



 

 

 

PLAN COMMISSION  

Heman Park Community Center 

975 Pennsylvania Ave., University City, MO 63130 

6:30 pm; Wednesday, August 28, 2019 

 

The Plan Commission held their regular meeting at Heman Park Community Center located at 

975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University city, Missouri on Wednesday, August 28, 2019. The 

meeting commenced at 6:33pm and concluded at 7:51pm. 

 

1. Roll Call 
 

Voting Members Present   Voting Members Absent 

Michael Miller    Cynthia Head  

Judith Gainer 

Cirri Moran – Chair 

Margaret Holly 

Ellen Hartz 

 

Non-Voting Council Liaison 

Paulette Carr (Absent) 

 

Staff Present 

Gregory Rose, City Manager 

John Mulligan, City Attorney 

Clifford Cross, Director of Planning and Development  

Adam Brown, Planner 



 

 

 

 

Mr. Cross proposed a change in the agenda. He noted that the CUP application for Canine 
Corner LLC (PC 19-03), which was on the agenda for this meeting, was heard by the traffic 
commission. However, as the owner of the property had withdrawn permission for the 
application, staff recommended tabling the request. 
 
There was discussion between the City Attorney, staff, and the Commission about the 
appropriate course of action regarding this CUP. Mr. Mulligan stated that at some point the 
matter should be brought to closure either by the applicant withdrawing the application, or 
through vote to deny the application by the Plan Commission.   
 
Mr. Cross advised that should the public hearing be closed, but the case re-opened, staff could 
send notice for a new public hearing to allow comments. He stated that he agreed with closing 
the public hearing at this meeting. 
 
Ms. Moran asked if there were any public comments on the matter. Hearing none, Ms. Holly 
moved to the close the public hear. Ms. Gainer seconded the motion. The Commission voted 
unanimously to close the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Hartz moved to table the CUP application until the September meeting, and Ms. Gainer 
seconded the motion. There was no discussion and the motion carried unanimously. CUP case 
PC 19-03 was tabled. 
 
Mr. Cross then explained that staff is further evaluating the state statutes in regards to 
administrative approval of minor subdivision, in regards to PC 19-05. Mr. Cross explained that 
this would speed up the process and that, in effect, the Plan Commission is approving cases 
they cannot deny. Ms. Moran stated she felt this should be discussed with the Code Committee. 
 
Ms. Gainer moved to submit review of 19-05 to committee for review. Mr. Miller seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes 
 
Ms Hartz moved to approve the April 24 minutes with corrections submitted by Ms. Holly for 
staff to make. Mr. Miller seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Miller moved to approve the July 24, 2018 minutes with corrections submitted by Ms. Holly. 
Ms. Gainer seconded. The motion carried unanimously.  
 

3. New Business 
 

a. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-04 
Applicant: Brothers Market 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to establish a convenience store 
Address: 883 Kingsland Avenue 

 
Mr. Cross presented the case and existing conditions. A CUP would be required for the 
establishment of a convenience store within the Industrial Commercial (IC) zoning district. The 



 

 

name of the business would change at the request of Washington University. The property at 
883 Kingsland is owned by MD Jones LLC. The existing zoning would not change. 
 
The property is a 1.45 acre tract at the intersection of Vernon and Kingsland, which has 15,000 
square feet of retail and 85 parking spaces on the front and side of the building. The business 
proposes to use about 2,000 spare feet in a currently vacant suite in the building. The building 
houses a restaurant, two retail areas (vacant), a nail salon, and a laundromat. 
 
Based on the input from the applicants about their business, Mr. Cross interpreted the use to be 
a convenience store as stated in section 400.630 of the zoning code. 
 
Mr. Cross reviewed the steps by which a Conditional Use Permit is considered, involving staff 
review, Plan Commission review and recommendation to Council, and finally Council approval 
or denial. He also reviewed the six points of criteria on which the review would be based. 
 
Mr. Cross described the proposed use for this property from the Comprehensive Plan update of 
2005, which was retail use. He provided Table 19 from the Comprehensive Plan which 
demonstrated recommended uses in commercial districts. He also reviewed the surrounding 
land uses which are Commercial, Industrial, Planned Development, and Single-Family 
Residential. 
 
Mr. Cross stated he had received no concerns from the public. The only staff concern was in 
regards to peak parking. The land use proposed – continuing a commercial use – is compatible 
with the current use, and would not be an increase in the intensity of the use. The parking 
problem during peak hours would be no different for any other proposed business even if it was 
defined as a by-right use. 
 
Mr. Cross laid out the options for the Plan Commission, and the process of Findings of Fact 
(section 400.270) on which they should base their recommendation. He stated that properties 
within 300 feet were duly noticed, this distance being beyond what is required by code. 
 
Ms. Moran clarified that if parking was an issue it would be an issue no matter what went in the 
space. The options would be for a business to occupy the space or not. Mr. Cross noted that 
when an existing business goes into a building that was a similar use, the Plan Commission has 
the option to reduce the parking requirements by 25% through the CUP process. 
 
Ms. Moran asked if there was an opportunity for shared parking or re-striping the lot to 
accommodate more vehicles. Mr. Cross said staff could look into these options but the lot 
already appeared to be at capacity. 
 
Ms. Holly asked what the proposed hours of the business would be, and Mr. Cross said that the 
hours should remain within those that already exist with other businesses in the area. This could 
be specified in the CUP. 
 
The applicants presented their business idea, which consists of a family-owned market with 
sandwiches, desserts, candy, juices, tobacco products, and free food delivery. The proposed 
hours are Sunday through Thursday, 7am to 11pm, and Friday and Saturday, 7am to midnight. 
The applicants plan to talk to the restaurant and laundromat about reserving a section of parking 
for the deli, and added that most of their customers would not stay long at the store.  
 
Ms.Moran asked if the sandwiches would be made on site. The applicants said they would. Ms. 



 

 

Gainer asked if there would be tables, and the applicants said there would be one or two tables, 
but they would not encourage large numbers of people to stay. Peak times would be between 
11am and 1pm, and between 5-7pm. Opening early would be for afternoon prep. 
 
Mr. Miller asked if there would be two dedicated parking spaces. Mr. Cross explained there 
would be no change in the overall number of spaces for the plaza, and that any arrangement for 
dedicated spaces would be part of the lease agreement with the building owners. 
 
No alcohol will be sold at this location. The applicants stated the new name would be 
WattanMart. They said they would carry groceries that would cater to multi-cultural Wash U 
students. They also plan to carry milk, bread, vegetables, deli meats, eggs, etc. 
 
There was no public comment on this application. 
 
Ms. Gainer said she had heard from residents in the neighborhood about the concern of more 
trash being generated. Mr. Cross stated that staff would work with the property owner to insure 
compliance with property maintenance codes, including trash. 
 
Ms. Gainer recommended using recyclable containers, no Styrofoam, and a minimum of hard 
plastic, and stated that City staff would be willing to work with the business owners to find ways 
to increase sustainability. This could also be used to help the image of the business with a 
community that is concerned with sustainability. 
 
Ms. Holly asked about whether this project would conflict with an earlier CUP granted by the 
Plan Commission for a convenience store located as an extension of the BP gas station on 
Olive and Kingsland. Mr. Cross said staff would check if this CUP was still active. Ms. Holly 
recalled the two main issues raised with that CUP being trash and impervious surface being 
added. 
 
Mr. Rose asked if the applicant could give information on their anticipated food sales as a 
percentage of total sales. Ms. Holly also asked how the store would differentiate itself from other 
convenience stores. The applicant responded that food sales would be estimated at 80% or 
more, and that gas stations have uniform offerings, while their store would offer a variety of 
ethnic foods. Mr. Rose asked which countries would be represented based on the food, and the 
applicant responded that Arabic, Greek, Middle Eastern, Chinese, and American food would be 
offered. 
 
Ms. Gainer moved to approve the request for a CUP. Ms. Holly seconded the motion. The 
motion carried unanimously. Plan Commission will recommend a CUP in the case of PC 19-04, 
and Mr. Cross explained that this could be on the Council Agenda for September 9, 2019. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested that the building owner could place trash receptacles outside the store. 
 

4. Other Business 
 
Mr. Cross updated the Plan Commission on the Request for Proposal for a consultant to assist 
with the City’s comprehensive plan, which will be released on September 13. 
 
Mr. Cross stated that Plan Commission retreat would be in order to meet and discuss issues 
and general principles going forward. He also said that at the retreat the role of the Code 
Committee could be discussed. 



 

 

Mr. Rose said Council had given direction to move forward with a storm water run-off study with 
the Army Corps of Engineers and Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District. The September 9 
council agenda will contain two items, one extending the study with MSD and one modifying the 
agreement with the Army Corps of Engineers from 2004. 
 
Mr. Rose also reported that EMS is back in the City’s control and that joint agreements with 
surrounding municipalities for service had been reinstated.  
 
Ms. Hartz asked for an update on the Olive/170 Development. Mr. Rose said it is progressing. 
Novus Development are in the process of acquiring property, which could take 6-18 months. Mr. 
Rose stated that he felt Costco would be a good amenity for the community as well as bringing 
quality jobs. 
 
Ms. Moran asked if any businesses would be relocated within University City. Mr. Rose stated 
that City Council had approved a relocation process which will try and incentivize those 
businesses to stay in U City. This process would not begin until Novus has executed contracts 
for all the property needed for the development. Ms. Hartz asked if City Council had approved 
eminent domain for the storage facility, and Mr. Rose said this had not happened yet, but is not 
off the table. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested that Costco may not serve all 3rd Ward residents due to the annual 
membership fee, but suggested perhaps the City could negotiate a lower fee or waiver for City 
residents. Mr. Rose again highlighted that quality jobs would be made available, with the City 
strongly encouraging Costco to offer the residents a first chance at these jobs.  
 
Ms. Holly motioned to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Miller seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 
7:51pm. 
 
Prepared by Adam Brown, Planner 
 
 
 

 



 
Page 1 of 6 

  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   October 23, 2019 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 19-06  
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Location: 8550 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: GBG Transportation LLC 
 
Property Owner: 8550 Olive LLC 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a proposed  

(Vehicle Service Facility with Accessory Used Car Sales) 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [  ] Approval with Conditions in Attachment A [x] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Application Packet  
 
 
Existing Zoning:             GC – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:   Unoccupied Building – Former Gas Station/Service Facility   
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC:          Commercial, (Commercial - FLU) 
East:  GC/SR:      Commercial/Residential (Commercial/Residential - FLU) 
South:  PA:             Woodlands/Golf Course (Parks/Recreation/Open Space - FLU) 
West:  GC:         Commercial  
 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Existing Property 
The existing building at 8550 Olive Boulevard consists of an approximate 2,800 square foot 
commercial building that was originally constructed and housed a gas station and repair 
facility. The building currently consists of an office area and three accessible repair bays. The 
fuel pumps have been removed from the facility. The parcel is approximately .48 acres with 
an impervious parking area of approximately 16,000 square feet. The property is zoned 
General Commercial and abuts commercial and residential uses.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

8550 Olive 
Boulevard 

8550 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8550 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 4 of 6 

Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a “Vehicle Service Facility with 
Accessory Used Auto Sales”. The proposed use is listed as a conditional use in the General 
Commercial (GC) District per section 400.510, Subsection A(26): Vehicle Service Facilities.  
Automobile and light truck sales and leasing is also listed as a conditional use in the General 
Commercial (GC) District per section 400.510, Subsection A. 
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700.C of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications 
be reviewed by Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to 
the City Council for their consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700.D of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications be 
reviewed by City Council for the final decision, subsequent to the public hearing and 
recommendation from Plan Commission.  In conducting its review, City Council shall consider 
the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, and application to determine if the 
proposed C.U.P. application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Other Processes 
Traffic Commission - The review criteria for a C.U.P. includes the impact of projected 
vehicular traffic volumes and site access with regard to the surrounding traffic flow, 
pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and equipment.  In its capacity as 
an advisory commission on traffic related matters as per Section 120.420 of the Municipal 
Code, the Traffic Commission may be concerned with the parking and traffic impact of the 
project.   
 
Analysis 
The potential “Vehicle Service Facility” use would appear to have minimal impact on the 
surrounding neighborhood and uses based upon its location and original use. As a result, the 
use impact of the use itself seems to be minimal because of the existing commercial uses 
associated with the site. However, hours of operation of the business would need to be 
identified to further evaluate the potential impact of the new business.  
 
The Automobile Sales would further intensify the original use of the building. In addition, 
Section 400.530 (Other Development Standards) of the zoning code states that “Used 
automobiles, trucks, trailers, boats or recreational vehicles may be sold only in conjunction 
with, and on the same lot or site as the sale of new vehicles and under the same business 
ownership or management.” Based upon the non-presence of a new vehicle dealership 
waiver of this requirement would have to be a condition of approval. 
 
If approved the projected parking for the combined “Vehicle Service Facility and Used Auto 
Sales Use” would be approximately 15 required spaces. That ratio is based upon 2 spaces 
for the Auto Sales, 12 spaces for the vehicle repair and one additional space for operations. 
 

Public Works & Parks:  NA 
Fire Department:  NA 
Police Department:  NA 
 
 
 



 
Page 5 of 6 

Public Involvement 
A public hearing at a regular Planning Commission meeting is required by the Zoning Code.  
The public hearing notice for the current proposal was published in the newspaper 15 days 
prior to the meeting date and was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the subject 
property, exceeding the required distance of 185 feet.  Signage was also posted on the 
subject property with information about the public hearing.  Any member of the public will 
have an opportunity to express any concerns by writing in or attending the Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 
Review Criteria 
When evaluating a Conditional Use Permit the applicant is required to ensure that the 
following criteria is being met in accordance to the provisions set forth in Section 400.2710 of 
the Zoning Code. The Criteria is as follows; 
 
1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance   
    standards, and the standards for motor vehicle oriented businesses, if applicable, as  
    contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article; 
 
2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with  
    regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency  
    vehicles and equipment; 
 
3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as   
    police and fire protection, schools, and parks; 
 
4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be  
    provided; 
 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area; 
 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts; and 
 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have  
    been or will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level,  
    such potentially adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be  
    limited to: 
 

a.  Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control  
        islands, traffic control devices, etc.; 
b.  Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   

site and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular 
traffic in nearby residential areas; 

c.  Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the 
applicant's property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on 
adjacent streets; 

d.  Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the 
minimum requirements of this Chapter; 



 
Page 6 of 6 

e.  Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, 
and drive-through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent 
properties while maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without 
impeding internal traffic circulation; 

f.  Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use 
(e.g., deliveries); and 

g.  Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance 
neighborhood compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact (Section 400.2720) 
The Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit unless it 
shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the 
particular evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional 
use: 
 
1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or     
    convenience; 
 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable),  
    the Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and  
    development policies of the City; and 
 
5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards  
    contained in Article VII of this Chapter 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff is of the opinion that the proposed use of this 
property to accomidate the “Vehicle Service Facility” would not be determental to the 
surrounding parcels. The proposed use is consistent with the intended use of the building and 
would not impact neighboring properties. However, approval of the vehicle service facility 
should have restrictions on the number of vehicles that can be stored on-site and require 
appropriate screening. Staff further believes the accessory used auto sales would not be 
consistent with the intent of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Staff is recommending denial of the request based upon the “Accessory Use Auto Sales” 
component that would further intensify the outdoor operations. 
  
 



















 
Page 1 of 7 

  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   October 23, 2019 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 19-07  
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  2 
 
Location: 6800 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: Green To Cure, Inc. 
 
Property Owner: Mubeen Investment Group, Inc. 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a proposed  

(Medical Marijuana Dispensary) 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [  ] Approval with Conditions in Attachment A [x] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Application Packet 
B. Floor Plan  

 
 
Existing Zoning:             GC – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:   Multi-Tenant Commercial   
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC:          Commercial, (Commercial - FLU) 
East:  IC:               Commercial, (Commercial- FLU) 
South:  SF:             Residential (Residential - FLU) 
West:  GC:         Commercial, (Commercial – FLU) 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 7 

 
 
Existing Property 
The existing building at 6800 Olive Boulevard consists of an approximate 6,000 square foot 
commercial building that consists of 6 individual suites. The largest of the 6 suites is 6800(A) 
which houses an approximate 1400 square foot retail store. The remaining 5 suites are 
approximately 900 square feet and house a small restaurant, hair salon, cell phone shop, tax 
service and vacant suite. The site currently has 26 on-site available parking spaces. The 
property is zoned General Commercial and abuts commercial and residential uses.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

6800 Olive 
Boulevard 

6800 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6800 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 4 of 7 

 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a “Medical Marijuana Dispensary”. 
The proposed use is listed as a conditional use in the General Commercial (GC) District per 
section 400.510, Subsection A(32): Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility.  
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700.C of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications 
be reviewed by Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to 
the City Council for their consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700.D of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications be 
reviewed by City Council for the final decision, subsequent to the public hearing and 
recommendation from Plan Commission.  In conducting its review, City Council shall consider 
the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, and application to determine if the 
proposed C.U.P. application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Other Processes 
Traffic Commission - The review criteria for a C.U.P. includes the impact of projected 
vehicular traffic volumes and site access with regard to the surrounding traffic flow, 
pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and equipment.  In its capacity as 
an advisory commission on traffic related matters as per Section 120.420 of the Municipal 
Code, the Traffic Commission may be concerned with the parking and traffic impact of the 
project.   
 
Analysis 
The potential “Medical Marijuana Dispensary” use would appear to have minimal impact on 
the surrounding neighborhood and uses based upon the retail use. As a result, the use 
impact, of the retail operations, is consistent with the trend of development because of the 
existing commercial uses associated with the site. However, approval of Conditional Use 
Permits, for a “Medical Marijuana Dispensary”, is subject to Section 400.1495 
(Supplementary Regulations) which identify the following standards; 
 

No building shall be constructed, altered, or used for a Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
without complying with the following regulations. 

 
1. Buffer Requirement. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall be located within Five 

Hundred (500) feet of an existing elementary or secondary school, licensed child day 
care center, or church. Measurements shall be made in a straight line, without regard 
to intervening structures, from the nearest point on the exterior building wall of the 
school, child care center, or church, to the main public entrance of the medical 
marijuana business.  

 
2. Residential Zoning Buffer Requirement. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall be 

located within One Hundred Fifty (150) feet of a residentially zoned district. 
Measurements shall be made in a straight line, without regard to intervening 
structures, from the main public entrance of the medical marijuana business to the 
nearest property line of the residentially zoned district. 

 



 
Page 5 of 7 

 
 

3. Outdoor Operations or Storage Prohibited. All operations and all storage of 
materials, products, or equipment shall be within a fully enclosed building. No 
outdoor operations or storage shall be permitted. 

 
4. Hours of Operation. All Medical Marijuana Dispensaries shall be closed to the public, 

no persons not employed by the business shall be on the premises, and no sales or 
distribution of marijuana shall occur upon the premises or by delivery from the 
premises between the hours of 10:00 P.M. and 8:00 A.M. 

 
5. Display of License Required. The medical marijuana license issued by the State of 

Missouri shall be displayed in an open and conspicuous place on the premises. 
 

6. Residential Dwelling Units Prohibited. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary shall be 
located in a building that contains a residence. 

 
Ventilation Required. All medical marijuana businesses shall install and operate a ventilation 
system that will prevent any odor of marijuana from leaving the premises of the business. No 
odors shall be detectable by a person with a normal sense of smell outside the boundary of 
the parcel on which the facility is located. 
 
 
In evaluating the request the site does appear to be eligible for approval with the exception 
that the primary entrance of the building is approximately 50 feet from  residentially zoned 
lots to the South. Approval of the request would require a waiver to the 150 foot “Residential 
Zoning Buffer” requirement. If a waiver is considered additional vertical buffering should be 
considered as part of the approval. 
 
Furthermore, in evaluating the parking requirements the site would require approximately 35 
on-site spaces. Those spaces would consist of approximately 12 for the restaurant, 3 for the 
salon and 20 for the remaining retail. However, the retail use of the proposed suite has not 
discontinued so the non-conforming parking ratios can continue without further action. 
 
 

Public Works & Parks:  NA 
Fire Department:  NA 
Police Department:  NA 
 
Public Involvement 
A public hearing at a regular Planning Commission meeting is required by the Zoning Code.  
The public hearing notice for the current proposal was published in the newspaper 15 days 
prior to the meeting date and was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the subject 
property, exceeding the required distance of 185 feet.  Signage was also posted on the 
subject property with information about the public hearing.  Any member of the public will 
have an opportunity to express any concerns by writing in or attending the Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 6 of 7 

 
Review Criteria 
When evaluating a Conditional Use Permit the applicant is required to ensure that the 
following criteria is being met in accordance to the provisions set forth in Section 400.2710 of 
the Zoning Code. The Criteria is as follows; 
 
1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance   
    standards, and the standards for motor vehicle oriented businesses, if applicable, as  
    contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article; 
 
2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with  
    regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency  
    vehicles and equipment; 
 
3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as   
    police and fire protection, schools, and parks; 
 
4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be  
    provided; 
 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area; 
 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts; and 
 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have  
    been or will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level,  
    such potentially adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be  
    limited to: 
 

a.  Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control  
        islands, traffic control devices, etc.; 
b.  Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   

site and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular 
traffic in nearby residential areas; 

c.  Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the 
applicant's property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on 
adjacent streets; 

d.  Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the 
minimum requirements of this Chapter; 

e.  Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, 
and drive-through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent 
properties while maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without 
impeding internal traffic circulation; 

f.  Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use 
(e.g., deliveries); and 



 
Page 7 of 7 

g.  Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance 
neighborhood compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact (Section 400.2720) 
The Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit unless it 
shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the 
particular evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional 
use: 
 
1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or     
    convenience; 
 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable),  
    the Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and  
    development policies of the City; and 
 
5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards  
    contained in Article VII of this Chapter 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff is of the opinion that the proposed use of this 
property to accommodate a retail type of use would not be detrimental to the surrounding 
parcels. The proposed use is consistent with the intended use of the building and would not 
impact neighboring properties. However, approval of the “medical marijuana dispensary” 
would require a waiver to the “Residential Buffer” provisions.  
 
Staff is recommending denial of the request based upon the buffering separation 
requirements. Staff would only be in support of a waiver, to these provisions, if the applicant 
can demonstrate physical buffering alternatives that would mitigate the potential 
encroachment of the buffer requirement. 
  
 

















 
Page 1 of 6 

  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   October 23, 2019 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 19-08 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Location: 7547 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: Sprint 
 
Property Owner: American Tower 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a proposed  

(Upgrade of Equipment to Existing MonoPole) 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval  [  ] Approval with Conditions in Attachment A [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Application Packet 
B. Applicant Project Information  

 
 
Existing Zoning:             GC – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:   Existing MonoPole (Flagpole) 
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  SR:    Residential, (Residential - FLU) 
East:  GC:             Commercial (Commercial - FLU) 
South:  PA:             Cemetery (Institution - FLU) 
West:  GC:          Commercial (Institution – FLU) 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 
Existing Property 
The existing structure consists of an approximate 120 foot high Monopole at 7547 Olive 
Boulevard. The existing infrastructure is within the Antenna. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7547 Olive 
Boulevard 

7547 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7547 Olive 
Boulevard 



 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the construction of exterior co-locate 
antennas on an existing Monopole. The current antennas are camouflaged within the existing 
pole. The new antennas are proposed to be located on the exterior of the pole and visible to 
the public eye. As a result, the replacement of these antennas are not permitted per Section 
400.1390 of the code which reads the following; 
 

“Antennas On Existing Buildings/Structures. In all districts, except not on single-family 
residential or two-family dwellings, the mounting of antennas on any existing and conforming 
building or structure (other than a support structure or utility pole) provided that the presence 
of the antenna and equipment is concealed by architectural elements or fully camouflaged or 
concealed by painting a color identical to the surface to which they are attached, and further 
provided that all requirements of this Division and the underlying zoning ordinance are met.” 
 
Based upon the inability to meet the requirements of Section 400.1390 the 
replacement/upgrading of these antennas require the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 
per Section 400.1395 which reads the following; 
 
“Conditional Use Permit Required. All proposals to construct or modify a wireless 
communications facility not permitted by Section 400.1390 (Permitted Use) or 
Section 400.1392 (Administrative Approval) or not fully complying with the general 
requirements of this Division shall be permitted only upon the approval of a conditional use 
permit authorized consistent with Article XI of this Zoning Code, subject to the following 
additional requirements, procedures, and limitations:” 
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700.C of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications 
be reviewed by Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to 
the City Council for their consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700.D of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications be 
reviewed by City Council for the final decision, subsequent to the public hearing and 
recommendation from Plan Commission.  In conducting its review, City Council shall consider 
the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, and application to determine if the 
proposed C.U.P. application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Analysis 
The proposed antennas will be visible but the color coding of the additions will be consistent 
with the existing pole. The proposed locations do not exceed 91 feet which will allow for the 
continued use of the pole as a flag pole. 
 
 

Public Works & Parks:  NA 
Fire Department:  NA 
Police Department:  NA 
 



 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 
Public Involvement 
A public hearing at a regular Planning Commission meeting is required by the Zoning Code.  
The public hearing notice for the current proposal was published in the newspaper 15 days 
prior to the meeting date and was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the subject 
property, exceeding the required distance of 185 feet.  Signage was also posted on the 
subject property with information about the public hearing.  Any member of the public will 
have an opportunity to express any concerns by writing in or attending the Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 
Review Criteria 
When evaluating a Conditional Use Permit the applicant is required to ensure that the 
following criteria is being met in accordance to the provisions set forth in Section 400.2710 of 
the Zoning Code. The Criteria is as follows; 
 
1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance   
    standards, and the standards for motor vehicle oriented businesses, if applicable, as  
    contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article; 
 
2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with  
    regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency  
    vehicles and equipment; 
 
3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as   
    police and fire protection, schools, and parks; 
 
4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be  
    provided; 
 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area; 
 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts; and 
 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have  
    been or will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level,  
    such potentially adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be  
    limited to: 
 

a.  Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control  
        islands, traffic control devices, etc.; 
b.  Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   

site and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular 
traffic in nearby residential areas; 

c.  Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the 
applicant's property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on 
adjacent streets; 



 
Page 6 of 6 

d.  Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the 
minimum requirements of this Chapter; 

e.  Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, 
and drive-through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent 
properties while maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without 
impeding internal traffic circulation; 

f.  Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use 
(e.g., deliveries); and 

g.  Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance 
neighborhood compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact (Section 400.2720) 
The Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit unless it 
shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the 
particular evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional 
use: 
 
1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or     
    convenience; 
 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable),  
    the Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and  
    development policies of the City; and 
 
5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards  
    contained in Article VII of this Chapter 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the request if the same color pattern is utilized and 
consistent with the existing pole. 
 

























Page 1 of 8 
 

  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   October 23, 2019 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 19-09 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  1 
 
Applicant: ALP Acquisition LLC 
 
Location: 8400 Delmar Boulevard (Delcrest Plaza) 
 
Request: 1) A Zoning Map Amendment from General 

Commercial (GC) to PD-M Planned Development-
Mixed Use District; and 
2) Preliminary Development Plan approval 

 
Existing Zoning:   General Commercial 
Proposed Zoning:   PD-M Planned Development-Mixed Use District 
Existing Land Use:   Office Building/Commercial 
Proposed Land Use: Mixed-Use Development with Commercial, Hotel & 

Multi-Family Residential Uses 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
North:  GC-General Commercial   Commercial  
  MR – Medium Density Residential Multi-Family Residential 
East:  GC-General Commercial   Commercial, Walgreens 
South:  PD-Planned Development Mixed Use Residential/Commercial, (Crown) 
West:  GC-Industrial Commercial District  P-ROW/170 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[ x ] Yes [  ] No  [  ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval [ x ] Approval with Conditions in Resolution (Attachment B) [  ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Application Documents 
B. Draft Resolution 
C. Preliminary Development Plan 
D. Draft Ordinance 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 8 
 

 
 
Existing Property 
St. Louis County Locator ID: 18K430172 The subject property is approximately 2.19 
acres and is currently houses an older office building and a small commercial building.  
It is located at the southwest corner of Delmar Boulevard and Delcrest Drive.   
 
Background 
The subject property has housed an approximate 100,000 square foot office building 
that has been on site for approximately 50 years. The site also contains an approximate 
2500 square foot commercial building that primarily has housed commercial businesses 
thru the years. The current site conditions, associated with the property, consists of a 
100% Impervious Surface Ratio that houses the aforementioned buildings and 
approximately 200 on-site parking spaces. It is currently zoned GC-General Commercial 
and continues to operate under that zoning classification. The property is not currently 
within a historic district, defined on the national register or part of an identified overlay 
district.  
 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting that the subject property be rezoned from General 
Commercial (GC) to Planned Development Mixed Use PD-M in conjunction with 
approval of a preliminary development plan for a mixed-use development. 
 
The proposed development proposes a new upscale mixed-use development that will 
include corner retail with outside dining, a 5-story Element by Westin Hotel, one of 
Marriott’s “distinctive stay” brands, and a luxury 4-story apartment building.  The 
combination of uses are all built over a 2 level podium garage that is buried on the 
Delmar and Delcrest sides, and is semi-open but screened with landscaping to the West 
and to the South.  The exterior materials consist of 2 colors of grey brick with accents of 
soldier coursing and rowlocks at windows and doors, smooth fiber cement panels, 
“wood look” fiber cement panels, and pre-finished metal.  Both residential buildings will 
offer lots of amenities including pools, outdoor living areas, grills, lounges, bars, and 
fitness centers.  The developer has site control and intends to start the 18-24 month 
construction projects upon receiving zoning and building permit approval.  
 
The hotel component, of the development,t will consist of 133 units that contain 41 
Kings, 26 Studio Kings, 14 Studio Queens, 40 One Bedroom, 4 Conference Suite, 6 
Commons “A” and 2 Commons “B”. The various units will be located on floors 2 thru 6 
of the development totaling an approximate square footage of 89,916 square feet with 
an average of approximately 16,000 square feet per floor.  
 
The multi-family residential component will consist of approximately 160 units that will 
contain 29 studio units, 102 one bedroom units and 29 two bedroom units. These units 
will total approximately 160,134 square feet and be located on floors 2 thru 5 of the 
proposed development. The average square footage per floor will be approximately 
37,916 square feet.  
 
The remaining breakdown, of utilized space, will be accessory uses associated with the 
hotel and apartment complex. Specifically, Level 1 will consist of an approximate 8650 
square foot restaurant, 8650 square foot apartment common area, hotel lobby and 
meeting rooms. In addition, Level 1 will also provide 134 interior parking spaces. The  



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
 
lower level of the development will consist of 204 interior parking spaces. Level 1 
parking will be entered by a grade access point on Delmar Boulevard and the lower 
level parking area will be entered by a grade access point on Delcrest Drive. 
 
The preliminary development plan shows the proposed complex’s front yard setback at 
approximately 15 feet from right-of-way along Delmar Boulevard.  The southern section 
of the proposed complex is shown to be located approximately 15 feet from the south 
property line and the western most portion of the complex is approximately 9 feet from 
the western property line. The eastern portion of the complex is shown to be up to the 
eastern property line along Delcrest Drive.  
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of Delmar Boulevard and 
Delcrest Drive. The properties surrounding the development consist of a mix of 
commercial, office and residential uses. Specifically, to the east there is an existing 
commercial use (Walgreens), to the south there is a mixed use development (Crown 
Center) and to the north a multi-tenant commercial development containing restaurants, 
salons, etc. Future Land Use (FLU) Designations, per Map 23 of the 2005 
Comprehensive Plan, identify the subject property as having a Mixed-Use/Transit 
Oriented Development designation. The properties to the north, south and west have 
the same FLU and the Walgreens property has a Commercial FLU. In addition, to the 
north east of the subject property there is also an identified Multi-Family FLU. 
 
Analysis 
 
Zoning 
Article 14, Section 400.3180 of the Zoning Code requires that Plan Commission review 
a request for a map amendment and forward its recommendation to City Council.  A 
public hearing will be conducted at the City Council level. 
 
The purpose of “PD” Planned Development Districts, as set forth in Section 400.720, of 
the Zoning Code, is “to provide a means of achieving greater flexibility in development 
of land in a manner not always possible in conventional zoning districts; to encourage a 
more imaginative and innovative design of projects; to promote a more desirable 
community environment; and to retain maximum control over both the design and future 
operation of the development.”  The Code further states, “The city council, upon review 
by the plan commission, may, by an ordinance adopted in the same manner as a 
rezoning is approved, authorize a planned development district when the proposed 
development or use of a specific tract of land or area warrants greater flexibility, control 
and density than is afforded under the general regulations of standard zoning districts.” 
 
It is important to note, especially as it relates to PD-M designated developments, that 
the purpose for allowing flexibility through Planned Developments is to create 
developments that adapt better to site conditions and the relation to surrounding 
properties otherwise not possible under traditional district regulations, thus resulting in 
developments that are more compatible and consistent with surrounding 
neighborhoods. 
 
 



Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 
The relationship of planned development districts to the zoning map is set forth in 
Section 400.730 of the Zoning Code, which states in paragraph 1, “The "PD" 
designation, as detailed in this section, is a separate use district and may be attached to  
a parcel of land through the process of rezoning and zoning map amendment.”  
However, in addition to the rezoning of a parcel of land, development plan approval is 
required.  Section 400.730, paragraph 2 states, “It is the intent of this chapter that no 
development or redevelopment of the property encompassed by the "PD" designation 
take place until an acceptable development plan has been reviewed and approved in 
conformance with the requirements of this section, Article 14, “Amendments,” of this 
chapter and applicable sections of Chapter 405, “Subdivision and Land Development 
Regulations,” of the University City Municipal Code.” 
 
Uses 
The proposed mix of uses can be accommodated under the proposed PD-M District 
Zoning.  In staff’s opinion, a mixed-use development containing residential and 
commercial uses is appropriate for this site.  It is located at the signalized intersection of 
two major streets.  Additional residents on the site will result in additional patronage for 
the surrounding commercial uses. The proposed mix of residential and commercial uses 
would also be compatible with the surrounding uses which include commercial and 
residential uses.  The residential portion of the development is compatible and 
consistent with the residential neighborhood to the south which contains many four story 
apartment buildings. 
 
Section 400.760 of the Zoning Code establishes the permitted uses within a “PD-M” 
District.  The specific permitted land uses shall be established in the resolution adopted 
by the City Council governing the particular PD-M District.  Specific uses may include 
those uses designated as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses in any of the 
residential districts, and/or in the “LC” – Limited Commercial District, “GC” – General 
Commercial District, and “CC” – Core Commercial District.  The proposed uses comply 
with those set forth in the Zoning Code. 
 
Minimum Site Size 
The minimum site size for developments in any planned development district is one (1) 
acre.  The Code states that the minimum site size may be waived by the City Council 
upon report by the Plan Commission; if it is determined that the uses proposed is 
desirable or necessary in relationship to the surrounding neighborhood; or, if the city 
council should determine such waiver to be in the general public interest.  The subject 
site is situated in close proximity to other commercial uses and medium to high density 
multi-family dwellings to the east, south, northwest, and west.  Thus, the proposal would 
be compatible with the existing pattern of development and existing surrounding uses.  
Also, the proposed development could be an impetus for further redevelopment of 
properties centering this intersection into a node for this neighborhood.  There is no 
need for a waiver based upon the site containing more than one (1) acre. 
 
Density and Dimensional Regulations 
Density and dimensional regulations for PD-M Planned Development-Mixed Use District 
developments are set forth in Section 400.780 of the Zoning Code and are to 
incorporate the regulations set forth in both subsections dealing specifically with “PD-R” 
and “PD-C” developments.  Any discrepancies between the two sets of regulations and  



Page 5 of 8 
 

 
 
resolutions thereof shall be set forth in the map amendment ordinance and/or the 
resolution approving the development plan.  Section 400.780 of the Zoning Code also 
states that the approval of a development plan may provide for exceptions from the 
regulations associated with traditional zoning districts as may be necessary to achieve 
the objectives of the proposed planned development. 
 
Density under the “PD-R” regulations in Section 400.780 states that the density may be 
limited to that which is established in the original residential district or which is 
consistent with nearby existing developed areas.  Density is not addressed in the “PD-
C” regulations.  The density for the proposed development is 73.05 units per acre.  The 
density is below the maximum allowed 87 units per acre for elevator apartment 
buildings as set forth in the Zoning Code and is compatible with the neighborhoods to 
the south which is approximately 62 units per acre. 
 
Floor Area Ratio is not addressed in the “PD” Section of the Zoning Code.  The HR – 
High Density Residential District allows for elevator apartment developments with a 
Floor Area Ratio of up to 2.0 when developed on a lot of at least one acre in area.  The 
Floor Area Ratio for the proposed development is 3.68 and thus would require a waiver 
to accommodate the approximate 160,314 square feet of multi-family residential use.  
 
Site coverage regulations state that total site coverage by uses permitted in the “PD-C” 
or “PD-I” districts shall be seventy (70) percent.  Maximum site coverage may be 
increased up to ninety (90) percent if the development plan complies with four or more 
criteria from a list of eleven listed in the Zoning Code.  Site coverage is not addressed in 
the “PD-R” regulations.  Among the criteria listed for granting an increase in site 
coverage are providing a mixed use development, and any other performance criteria 
that further the goals, objectives and policies of the comprehensive plan.  The site 
coverage for the proposed mixed-use development is 86.5 percent (Approximately 
95,400 / 12,900).  Thus, the site coverage of the proposed mixed-use development 
would reduce the existing 100% site coverage and is reasonable.  
 
Building Setbacks and Buffers 
Required building setbacks or buffers shall be as specifically established in the 
governing ordinances and resolutions for PD-M Developments on a case by case basis.   
A perimeter buffer of fifty (50) feet is required when a PD-C or a PD-I development 
abuts a residential district.  It is noted that the subject property does not abut any 
residential district.  Where a PD-R development abuts a commercial or industrial use or 
district, a thirty (30) – foot wide buffer is required with landscaping and screening. 
 
If the applicable setback was contingent upon the current underlying General 
Commercial (GC) district then the setbacks would be based upon Chapter 400, Article 
IV, Division 8, Section 400.580, Subsection B of the zoning code. Therefore, if 
applicable, the required front and side yard setbacks would be 15 feet from the 
applicable right-of-way (ROW) lines assuming there are no parking areas located 
between the ROW and principle building. Additionally, the rear property line setback 
would be a minimum of 5 feet based upon the non-residential Planned Development 
Mixed-Use district located to the south of property.  
 
 



Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 
Building Height 
The proposed building is five stories above grade and approximately 65 feet in height.  
It is noted that there is no maximum building height typically established for elevator 
apartment buildings.  Being located at the intersection of two major roads, the subject 
site is an ideal node for dense development.  The neighborhoods to the south and east 
are predominately four-story apartment buildings.  It is staff’s opinion that the proposed 
building height is reasonable and appropriate for this location. 
 
Landscaping/Screening 
The Preliminary Development Plan shows the areas of open space being along the 
landscape buffers, of the property, and within Level 2 of the plan.  Landscaping is 
proposed along all boundaries of the subject property. Staff will require an acceptable 
detailed landscape plan during the land disturbance review process. Based upon the 
layout staff has not identified the need for additional screening. 
 
Vehicular Access/Circulation 
Vehicular access to the parking garage serving the development is provided by two 
grade level access point.  All parking will be located within the development and 
cancelled from public view. The lower level parking area will contain 204 parking spaces 
and be accessible from Delcrest Drive. The level 1 parking area will contain 134 parking 
spaces and be accessible by a proposed right in / right out design.  Existing curb cuts 
on both Delmar and Delcrest exist and can be utilized as part of the design. 
 
Sidewalks 
At the location of the proposed development, it is staff’s opinion that promoting a 
pedestrian-friendly and walkable environment is of the utmost importance.  The 
proposed development is at a signalized intersection of two major roads. The 
development is within close proximity to the Centennial Greenway Trail and the site is 
well-served by mass transit routes.   
 
Parking 
Under the PD – Planned Development District regulations, relief from conventional 
zoning standards may be provided when the proposed development warrants greater 
flexibility than afforded under the general regulations.  The preliminary development 
plan shows a total of 338 off-street parking spaces.   
 
Based on preliminary parking analysis, and consideration of the characteristics of the 
proposed development and the surrounding area, staff has verified the following parking 
would be required. The parking requirements are based upon the current code that 
would require approximately 559 spaces (266 Residential and 293 Commercial). The 
specific calculations for each use would be as follows; 
 

 160 Residential Units  
o 29 Two Bedroom Units @ 2 spaces per unit = 58 
o 131 One Bedroom/Studio Units @ 1.5 spaces per unit = 196.5 
o Plus 1 Space for Every 6 Units up to 30 Units = 5 
o 1 Space for additional 20 after 30 for 130 Units = 6.5 

 
 



Page 7 of 8 
 

 
 

 Hotel Use 
o 133 Units @ 1.5 per unit = 199.5 
o Approximate 4,500 gross floor area @ 1 per 75 = 60 
o Approximate 1,700 square foot meeting area @ 1 per 50 = 34 

 
In evaluating the shared parking options, pertaining to the site, staff has verified that the 
parking demand ranges would be from 230.25 spaces required to 502.3 spaces. The 
utilization of shared parking would allow for an approximate 10% reduction in required 
parking. The individual ratios are as follows; 
 

 6 am – 5 pm M-T = 230.25 spaces  
o 66.5 Residential 
o 30 Restaurant 
o 34 Meeting 
o 99.75 Hotel 

 
 5 pm – 1 am M-T = 482.35 Spaces 

o 239.4 Residential 
o 60 Restaurant 
o 3.4 Meeting 
o 179.55 Hotel 

 
 6 am – 5 pm F-S = 331 Spaces 

o 133 Residential 
o 45 Restaurant 
o 3.4 Meeting 
o 149.6 Hotel 

 
 5 pm – 1 am F-S = 502.3 Spaces 

o 239.4 Residential 
o 60 Restaurant 
o 3.4 Meeting 
o 199.5 Hotel 

 
 Night Time = 482.2 Spaces 

o 266 Residential 
o 15 Restaurant 
o 1.7 Meeting 
o 199.5 Hotel 

 
Based on the proposed mix of uses, within the development, the proposed parking 
associated with the plan would require an approximate 32.5% reduction to the required 
parking (approximately 163 spaces). The proximity of the development to transit 
locations would allow for a 10% reduction. To accommodate the proposed use a waiver 
granting a 32.5% reduction in the parking would be required. 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
Building Design 
No set building design is required per the current code but the applicant has proposed 
an architectural design that can be locked in as part of the approval. The proposal is a 
proposed prescriptive “Formed Based Code” concept. 
 
Sustainability 
Additional sustainability measures should be incorporated into the proposed 
development for environmental considerations and to compensate for the 86.5% of site 
coverage proposed for the development.   
 
Comprehensive Plan 
It is staff’s opinion that the proposed mixed-use development, as shown on the 
Preliminary Development Plan submitted, is consistent with the goals and objectives of 
the University City Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005.  Applicable sections from the 
Plan Update that support this opinion are included below: 
 
In Chapter 3 of the Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005, under Housing, as an 
implementation action it states, “Encourage new housing development that is mixed-use 
and supports pedestrian oriented activities. Encourage planned housing developments 
to integrate different types, densities and income levels.”  It goes on further to state, 
“Ensure flexibility in land use regulations so that a variety of developments are more 
feasible. Ensure that the Zoning Code permits mixed-use activities and amenities. For 
example, review the parking requirements and investigate the possibility of parking 
credits if located near commercial or employment activities, on-street parking, or transit 
stations (such as the proposed MetroLink stations); review design elements to ensure 
flexible development standards for creating various positive attributes of mixed use 
housing such as open spaces; allow flexibility in lot sizes; review the possibility of 
allowing additional non-residential uses in planned residential developments.” 
 
Also in Chapter 3, of the Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005, under Land Use and 
Redevelopment, as a general policy it states, “The City will strongly support 
development(s) that promote desirable planning concepts such as neighborhood-
serving, mixed uses and transit-oriented development and enhance the pedestrian 
character of the City.” 
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff would recommend 1) approval of the 
Zoning Map Amendment from General Commercial to PD-M Planned Development-
Mixed Use District; and 2) approval of the Preliminary Development Plan based upon 
the following; 
 

1) Waiver of Parking Regulations by 32.5% if Mitigating Factors Can Eliminate 
Potential Parking Issues. 
 

2) Waiver to Floor Area Ratio by 1.68 to accommodate the proposed 3.68 FAR. 
 
3) Lot Consolidation Required As Part of the Subdivision Process 



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION #____________ 
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 400.850 of the University City Zoning Code requires that a 
preliminary development plan be approved by the City Council by adoption of a resolution 
approving said preliminary development plan, with conditions as may be specified and 
authorizing the preparation of the final development plan.  Section 400.760 of the Zoning Code 
requires that the permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of 
the ordinance adopted by the City Council governing the particular Planned Development-Mixed 
Use District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The City Council hereby authorizes the preparation of the final development plan for the 
proposal for this map amendment and resolution, to be known as “Delcrest Plaza.” The proposed 
structures shall be developed with the following conditions: 
 

1. The building and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in compliance 
with the plans submitted and dated on October 3, 2019 with the approved application.  
The height and mass shall be restricted to that shown on the preliminary development 
plan. 

 
2. The specific uses of “all permitted uses and/or conditional uses as set forth in the LC – 

Limited Commercial District, GC – General Commercial District, and CC – Core 
Commercial District, elevator apartment dwellings, and residential units” are designated 
as the permitted and conditional uses. 

 
3. The maximum number of dwelling units permitted shall be limited to 160 units. 

 
4. The minimum number of parking spaces allowed is reduced to 338 spaces. 

 
5. The maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) allowed cannot exceed 3.68. 

 
6. A detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to the Director of Community Development 

for approval, in conjunction with a review by the City Forestry Supervisor.   
 

7. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 
Director of Community Development for approval.  Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker and resident parking during all phases of the proposed construction. 
It shall further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues such as street 
cleaning and traffic diversion.  Said plan shall be finalized prior to the issuance of a 
building permit.  It shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain those approvals in 
written form in a timely manner prior to issuance of the building permit. 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

8. A Lot Consolidation shall be completed and Final Plat Recorded Prior to issuance of 
building permits. 

 
9. Approval of the Preliminary Development Plan shall be valid for a period of two years 

from the date of City Council approval.  A Final Development Plan shall be submitted 
within the said two-year period per Sections 400.860 and 400.870 of the Zoning Code. 

 
 
 
Moved by Council member ____________________________. 
 
 
Seconded by Council member ____________________________ and carried. 
 
 
Adopted this ______________ day of ________________________, 2019. 
 
 
I hereby certify that the above is a true excerpt from the minutes of the meeting of the City 
Council held on the ______________ day of ________________________, 2019. 
 
________________________________________ 
City Clerk 



















1 

INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
 
BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ZONING DISTRICTS 
ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 34-22 THEREOF, AND ENACTING IN 

LIEU THEREOF A NEW OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, THEREBY AMENDING SAID 
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 8400 DELMAR 
BOULEVARD TO “PD-M” PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-MIXED USE DISTRICT; AND 

ESTABLISHING PERMITTED LAND USES AND DEVELOPMENTS THEREIN; 
CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A PENALTY. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code divides the City in to 

several zoning districts, and regulates the character of buildings which may be erected in each of 
said districts, and the uses to which the buildings and premises located therein may be put; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission examined an amendment of the Official Zoning 
Map of the City which changes the classification of property at 8400 Delmar Boulevard from 
General Commercial (GC) to Planned Development-Mixed Use District (“PD-M”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission, in a meeting at the Heman Park Community 
Center located at 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri on October 24, 2019, 
considered said amendment and recommended to the City Council that it be enacted into an 
ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City 
Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m., on November 11, 2019, was duly published in the 
St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City on October 24, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, 
and all suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the 
City were duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to zoning, is 
hereby amended by repealing the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning districts established 
pursuant to Section 400.070 thereof, and enacting in lieu thereof a new Official Zoning Map, 
thereby amending the Official Zoning Map so as to change the classification of property at 8400 
Delmar Boulevard General Commercial (GC) to Planned Development-Mixed Use District    
(PD-M); The following land uses and developments may be permitted in said PD-M District, 
subject to approval of a final development plan: The specific uses of “all permitted uses and/or 



2 

conditional uses as set forth in the LC – Limited Commercial District, GC – General Commercial 
District, and CC – Core Commercial District, elevator apartment dwellings, and work/live units” 
are designated as the permitted and conditional uses. 
 

Section 2. Said property at 8400 Delmar Avenue Boulevard, totaling 2.19 acres, is more 
fully described with legal descriptions, attached hereto, marked Exhibit “B” and made a part 
hereof. 

 
The above described tract having St. Louis County locator number of: 
8400 Delmar Boulevard – 18K430172 

 
Section 3. The new Official Zoning Map of the City is attached hereto, marked Exhibit 

“A”, and incorporated herein by this reference thereto. 
 

Section 4. By Resolution No. ________, the City Council approved a preliminary 
development plan for 8400 Delmar Boulevard, known as “Delcrest Plaza,” and authorized the 
preparation of a final development plan.  A final development plan and plat (if applicable) must 
be approved by the City Council prior to the issuance of any building permits in connection with 
the development.  The number and type of dwelling units authorized, including the number of 
bedrooms per dwelling unit by type, shall be as permitted for the zoning classification of “all 
permitted uses and/or conditional uses as set forth in the LC – Limited Commercial District, GC 
– General Commercial District, and CC – Core Commercial District, elevator apartment 
dwellings, and work/live units” and consistent with the Preliminary Development Plan 
Application PC 19-09; except that the maximum number of dwelling units shall not exceed 160 
units. 
 

Section 5. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty incurred by the violation of Chapter 400, nor bar the prosecution of 
any such violation. 
 

Section 6. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Chapter 400, 
Section 400.2560 of the University City Municipal Code. 
 

Section 7. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2019. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 
EXHIBIT B – LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS FOR REZONING – DELCREST PLAZA 
 
Parcel ID 18K430172 8400 Delmar Boulevard 
 
 
 



  
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

DRAFT M E M O R A N D U M  
 

TO:    Plan Commission Members 
 
CASE:  PC 19-10 
 
FROM:   Clifford Cross, Director of Planning 
 
DATE:   October 16, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: October 23, 2019 Plan Commission meeting – Proposed Text Amendment 
relating to parking exceptions to off-street parking requirements (SECTION 400.2130 - 
Exceptions to minimum off-street parking and loading space) 

 
CC: Gregory Rose, City Manager 
 John Mulligan, City Attorney 
  

 
 
At the upcoming Plan Commission meeting, members will consider a text amendment to the 
zoning code pertaining to exceptions associated with off-street parking requirements SECTION 
400.2130 - Exceptions to minimum off-street parking and loading space.   

This code revision is a proposed solution to address concerns to appropriately allow for 
continued adaptive re-use of commercial buildings that have limited on-site parking. 
Furthermore, the revision is also intended to better meet the Zoning Code’s intent that all new 
development, throughout the City, will be required to meet on-site or shared parking 
requirements. The intent, of this proposed amendment, is to effectively address limited parking 
obstacles associated with established multi-unit commercial buildings while preventing the 
negative impact of excessive on street parking demands that result from new developments that 
do not provide the appropriate number of approved on-site or off-site parking spaces.  Staff 
believes these amendments provide appropriate exceptions to accommodate existing 
commercial establishments while addressing the potential negative impacts of on-street parking 
for new developments that do not provide an appropriate number of approved on-site or off-site 
parking.  
 
Summary of Amendment #1.  The Zoning Code currently allows for an exception to meeting 
the current parking requirements identified within Section 400.2140 of the Code. This section 
eliminated the requirement to meet current parking requirements for new construction, re-
construction or additions within the Core Commercial District. This proposed amendment 
eliminates that exception.  The remaining amendments reorganize the letters associated with 
the “Exceptions” based upon removal of letter “A” in its entirety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A. Parking Exception For The "CC" District. Division 4 of this Article shall not apply to any re-
occupancy or redevelopment of existing buildings or structures, whether or not the new use is 
similar to the previously permitted use, when located within the "CC" Core Commercial District 
as indicated on the official Zoning Map of University City. For the purposes of this Section, the 
term "redevelopment" shall mean: 
 

1. The construction of a new building, or 
 
2. An addition to an existing building that increases the gross floor area of that building 
by more than ten percent (10%) of the original gross floor area. 

 
 
Summary of Amendment #2.  The Zoning Code currently does not provide an exception on 
how to address existing suites within a multi-unit commercial building. This amendment 
addresses non-conforming situations where the parking has become non-conforming based 
upon a change in the parking requirements or was approved with a dimensional non-conformity. 
As a result, this amendment is intended to address multi-unit buildings that cannot 
accommodate a permitted or conditional use due to the lack of parking. The goal of this 
amendment is to insure that a vacancy, for a period exceeding 12 months, does not discontinue 
the non-conforming status of a buildings originally approved intent. This amendment provides 
for that opportunity in that a previously approved building, which has an approved “Site Plan 
Development” approval, can accommodate uses that it was intended for. In summary, this 
amendment locks in the originally approved number of parking spaces that can be considered 
non-conforming, with a specific suite/use, during the occupancy permit approval process. The 
key note is that this exemption only applies if the proposed use does not further intensify the 
parking demand associated with the originally proposed site plan and specific use designations.  
This amendment is added as “Article 7, Division 4, Section 400.2130, Subsection F”. 
 
F. Exception For Individual Permitted and Conditional Use Classifications Identified Within 
Previously Approved Site Plan Developments. These individual uses are only exempt from the 
provisions of Section 400.2140 if they do not further intensify the individual use parking 
requirements approved as part of the original Site Plan Development. This provision only 
applies to the establishment of an individual use within an existing suite located within a multi-
tenant commercial building.  
 



INTRODUCED BY:____________      DATE:____________ 
 
BILL NO.____________         ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO ZONING, BY AMENDING SECTION 

400.2130 THEREOF, RELATING TO OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 
REGULATIONS; CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A 

PENALTY. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri 
divides the City into several zoning districts and regulates the uses and off-street parking on which 
the premises located therein may be put; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission in a meeting held at the Heman Park Community 
Center located at 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri on October 23, 2019, at 
6:30 pm recommended an amendment of Section 400.2130 of the University City Zoning Code, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the 5th Floor 
City Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 pm, November 11, 2019, was duly published in the St. 
Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City on October 28, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, 
and all suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Zoning Code were duly heard 
and considered by the City Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.   Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri, 
relating to zoning, is hereby amended, by amending the following Section and relating to the 
descriptions thereafter 400.2130 – Off-Street Parking and Loading Regulations; and as so amended 
shall read as follows (where applicable, underlined text is added text and stricken text is removed): 
 
Article 7, Division 4, Section 400.2130 
Exceptions To The Minimum Off‐Street Parking and Loading Space Requirements. 
[R.O. 2011 §34‐94.1; Ord. No. 6139 §1(Exh. A (part)), 1997; Ord. No. 6401 §1(part), 2002] 
 
A. Parking Exception For The "CC" District. Division 4 of this Article shall not apply to any re‐occupancy or 
redevelopment of existing buildings or structures, whether or not the new use is similar to the previously 
permitted use, when located within the "CC" Core Commercial District as indicated on the official Zoning 
Map of University City. For the purposes of this Section, the term "redevelopment" shall mean: 
 



1. The construction of a new building, or 
 
2. An addition to an existing building that increases the gross floor area of that building by more 
than ten percent (10%) of the original gross floor area. 

 
B. A. Exception For Places Of Worship. On‐site parking facilities required for places of worship may be 
reduced by not more than fifty percent (50%) where such facilities are located in a non‐residential district 
and within five hundred (500) feet of public or private parking lots having sufficient spaces to make up for 
the reduction. The use of an off‐site public parking lot may only be authorized under the conditional use 
permit  procedure  (see Article  XI).  The  use of  an off‐site  private  parking  lot  shall  comply with  Section 
400.2010(B)(1), and be subject to the approval of the Zoning Administrator. 
 
C. B.  Exception For Change Of Use Of Existing Commercial Buildings. A reduction in the number of required 
off‐street parking and loading spaces for the re‐use of a commercial building, existing prior to the effective 
date  of  this  Chapter, may  be  authorized  under  the  conditional  use  permit  procedure  (see Article  XI), 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1.  The  reduction  shall  not  exceed  twenty‐five  percent  (25%)  of  the  off‐street  parking  space 
requirements for the proposed use; 
 
2. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off‐street parking spaces on‐
site; 
 
3. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in additional 
parking or loading space requirements; 
 
4. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., setbacks and 
landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted to off‐street parking shall 
be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement; and 

 
5. The reduction shall not result in "spill‐over" parking on adjacent or nearby properties. 
In making its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider information on 
the parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as presented by the applicant 
and City staff. 
 

D. C. Exception Where Public Parking Is Allocated For Use. The City Council may allow a reduction in the 
number of on‐site parking spaces required when the building served by such parking is located within five 
hundred (500) feet of a public parking facility or lot provided a fee is paid to the City for pro rata share of 
the cost of constructing and maintaining such facility or lot. [Ord. No. 6989 §1, 4‐27‐2015] 
 
E. D. Exception for Shared Parking Arrangements. Shared parking is an arrangement in which two or more 
uses with different peak parking periods (hours of operation) use the same off‐street parking spaces to 
meet  their  off‐street  parking  requirements.  Up  to  100%  of  the  parking  required  for  one  use may  be 
supplied by the off‐street parking spaces provided for another use.  
 

1. By conditional use permit, a reduction in the number of parking spaces may be authorized. In 
issuing a conditional use permit, the City will consider whether the uses; 
 



a. Are located within 500 (five hundred) feet as the crow flies of the shared parking as 
measured from the entrance of the use to the nearest point on the property;  
 
b. Have no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the uses for which the 
sharing  of  parking  is  proposed  (see  shared  parking  table  in  Section  400.2130.E.3  as  a 
guide); 
 
c. Do not adversely affect surrounding neighborhoods; 
 
d. Do not adversely affect traffic congestion and circulation; and 
 
e. Have a positive effect on the economic viability or appearance of the project or on the 
environment. 
 
f. Relieved spaces or off‐site shared parking spots cannot be located within the SR, LR, MR 
or HR Zoning Districts. 
 

2. Application Requirements for Shared Parking. As a part of the application materials required for 
a  conditional  use  permit,  the  applicant  seeking  shared  parking  shall  submit  to  the  Zoning 
Administrator the following information as a part of the conditional use permit application:  
 

a. Proof that the uses of the shared spaces will reflect different peak hours of operation 
at different times of the day, week, month or year (see shared parking table below);  
 
b. Proof of the size and types of proposed development or substantial changes, size and 
type  of  activities,  composition  of  tenants,  rate  of  turnover  for  parking  spaces,  and 
anticipated peak parking and traffic loads; 
 
c. Proof that the route from required ADA accessible spaces in shared parking area to the 
nearest  ADA  accessible  entrance  follows  an  accessible  route  as  defined  by  the  most 
recent ADA standards; 
d. An agreement providing for the shared use of parking areas, executed by the parties 
involved including owners of record, that shall include provisions for maintenance, snow 
removal, ownership, liability and duration of the agreement, and must be filed with the 
Department  of  Planning  and  Development  in  a  form  approved  by  the  Planning  and 
Development Director.  

 
3. Shared Parking Table. The following table shall be used to determine peak hours of operation 
for proposed shared parking. Parking requirements shall be the cumulative requirements of the 
uses  sharing  the  parking,  except  where  different  categories  of  uses  (retail  or  service, 
employment,  civic, or dwellings) are participating  in  the sharing agreement and are  likely  to 
generate  distinctly  different  times  of  peak  parking  demand.  Each  use  should  provide  a 
percentage  of  parking  required  by  these  regulations  according  to  the  shared  parking  table 
below. Whichever  time  period  column  requires  the  highest  total  parking  spaces  among  the 
various uses should be the amount of parking provided subject to the shared parking agreement 
and Plan Commission review. Alternative parking allocations may be approved as a function of 
the conditional use permit based on industry data or other sufficient evidence and analysis of 
peak parking demands for specific uses. 



 

Land Use 

Percentage of Required Parking Spaces by Period  

Monday‐Thursday  
Day and Evening 

Friday‐Sunday 
 Day and Evening 

Nighttime 

6 AM to 5 PM 
5 PM to 1 

AM 
6 AM to 5 

PM 
5 PM to 1 

AM 
1 AM to 6 AM 

EMPLOYMENT  100%  10%  5%  5%  5% 

RETAIL OR SERVICE  75%  75%  100%  90%  5% 

RESTAURANT  50%  100%  75%  100%  25% 

ENTERTAINMENT and 
RECREATION 

30%  100%  75%  100%  5% 

PLACE OF WORSHIP*  5%  25%  100%  50%  5% 

SCHOOL  100%  10%  10%  10%  5% 

DWELLING  25%  90%  50%  90%  100% 

LODGING  50%  90%  75%  100%  100% 

*Place of Worship parking needs will be considered on a case by case basis as different faiths gather at 
different days and times during the week. 
 

4. Duration of agreement. Shared parking privileges will  continue  in effect only as  long as  the 
agreement,  binding  on  all  parties,  remains  in  force.  Agreements  must  guarantee  long‐term 
availability of the parking, commensurate with the use served by the parking.  

 
5. Recording of Agreement. The agreements must be recorded with the County Recorder. If the 
uses of either party changes, the CUP is no longer valid unless the Zoning Administrator authorizes 
the  new  uses  and  determines  there  is  compliance  with  the  shared  parking  table  (Section 
400.2130.E.3). If a shared parking agreement lapses or is no longer valid, then parking must be 
provided as otherwise required by this article. 
 
6.  Revocation  of  permits. Failure  to  comply  with  the  shared parking  provisions  of  the  shared 
parking plan shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Code and shall be cause for revocation of a 
certificate of zoning compliance and/or building permit. 

F. E. Exception For Uses Located Near Transit Stations and Stops. For uses  located within five hundred 
(500) feet of a public transit station or stop, the off‐street parking requirements may be reduced by ten 
percent (10%). The Loop Trolley stops and stations shall not be included in this exception. 
 
F.  Exception  For  Individual  Permitted  and  Conditional  Use  Classifications  Identified  Within  Previously 
Approved Site Plan Developments. These individual uses are only exempt from the provisions of Section 
400.2140 if they do not further intensify the individual use parking requirements approved as part of the 
original Site Plan Development. This provision only applies to the establishment of an individual use within 
an existing suite located within a multi‐tenant commercial building.  
 

 
 



Section 2.    This ordinance shall not be construed to so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of said Sections mentioned 
above, nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 

Section 3.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalty provided in Title 1 Chapter 
1.12.010 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City. 
 

Section 4.   This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
PASSED this ________ day of ________________, ________. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
         MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 


	a-2019-10_23_Plan_Commission
	Combined Oct 23 Without Cover
	PC_Minutes_08_28_19 DRAFT
	Combined Staff application
	PC 19-06 CUP8550oliveStaff Report
	acanned application

	combined staff application
	PC 19-07 CUP6800oliveStaff Report
	scanned application
	GTC_Olive_Proposed Floor Plan (002)

	Combined staff application
	PC 19-08 CUP7547oliveStaff Report
	scanned application

	Combine Packet For PC
	19-09 Delcrest Plaza Staff Report PC
	8400 Delmar_Resolution
	U-City Mixed Use Development 10 04 2019 (002)
	Draft_Ordinance_Delcrest Plaza

	Memo With Ordinance Proposal
	SR_TXT_Parking Exceptions
	Final Proposed Draft for Review



